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ARG&Co.LLP
Cha rtered Accou nta nts

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the N{embers of DLF cochin Hotels ptivate Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial statements

Opinion

\X/e have audited the accompanpng Ind AS financial statements of DLF Cochin Hotels private Limited
('the ComPanI"), which cornprise the Balance sheet as at N{arch 31, 2025, the Statement of profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Fiow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equiry for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS fina,rcial statements glve the information required by the tompurri.s,1ct, 201,3 (,the
Act') in the manfler so required and g1\,e a true and fair vierv in confonnity rvith the nc.orptirg princrples
generally accepted in India, of the state of affars of the Company as at Nlarch3l ,2125,its toss inclujing
other comprehensive income, its cash florvs and the changes in equiry for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance rvith the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are ftyther
described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Filancial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics'issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together rvith the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the fi'nancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requilernents and the Code of E,thics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropliate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information Othet than the Financial Statements and Atrditor's Repoft Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and rve do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statemeots, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infonnation is materially inconsistent with the
financial statemeots or our knorvledge obtained in the audit or otherrvise appears to be mater-ially rnisstated.

if, based on the work we have perfonned, we conclude that there is a material rnisstatement of this other
rnformation, we are required to repott that fact. We have nothing to report i1 this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stateci in section 134(5) of the Act rvith
resPect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that glve a true and fair view of the fi.nancial
position, financial perfonnance including other comprehensive ilcorne, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Cornpanlr is accordance rvith the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Statdards (nd AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read rvith [the Cornpanies (Indian
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accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and p*a".rt; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Frnancial statements that glve a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company,s
ability to continue as a going concerll, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern andusing
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquiJate the Company or t;
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditot's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is , hbh level of assurance, but is not a gaarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. N{isstatements
can arise fiom fraud or error arrd arc considered mateflal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. \We also:

' Identify and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the Ind aS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or effor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from effor, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

' Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropnate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3X, of the Act, we are also iesponsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of strch controls.

' Er''aluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a mateial uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue 

^s ^going 
concern. If

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to r"afy
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor,s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concefn.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the undedy-g transactior6 urrJ
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

\We communicate with those charged with goverflance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audi.t and significant audit frndings, including any signifrcant deficiencies in internat
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W'e also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Repot on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2O2O ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we grive in the
"Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 ard 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(^) $7e have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of otu
knowledge and belief were necessa,ry for the purposes of our audit;

@) In our opinion, proPer books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

G) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss inctuding the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accourting Standards
specified under Section 1,33 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rtrles,
201,5, as amended;

(.) On the basis of the written representations received fiom the directors as on N{arch 31,,2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on N{arch 31,,2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 1,64 Q) "f 

the Act;

(0 !7ith respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to orrr separate Report in "Annexure B" to this report;

G) In our opinion and to the best of our inforrnation and according to the explanations given to us,
the company has not paid or provided any managerial remuneration as defined by the provisions of
the section 1,97 of the Companies Act,2013.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201,4, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations glven to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There u/ere no amounts which rvere required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The N'Ianagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
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("Intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest iI other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 1..ULi-ur.BeneFrciaries") or provide arry gu rantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The N{anagement has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which ate mateial either individually or in the aggregate) have b..n ,...ir..d by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ('Funding parties,), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

'that 
the-Comp any shall,

whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other pefsons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Bene6rciaries,,) or
provide any guarantee, secudty or the Iike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

.) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothrng has come to our notice that has caused us to U.tii".-tt at the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The comPany has not paid or declared any dividend during the year, accordingly the
provision of section 1,23 of the Act are not applicable to the cornpany.

The ComPany has used a third p^ry operated accounting software for maintaining its
books of account, based on examination of service organisation controls report (SbC
report), we noted that the audit trail feature of the said soft'ware was enabled and
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the sofnvare.
Further, during the course of our audit, based on the examination of such report, we did
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally,
based on examination of SOC report, the audit ftail in respect of such software has been
recorded and preserved in full compliance with the requirements of section 128(5) of the
Companies Act, 2073, in respect of the financial year ended N'Iarch 31,, 2025. Further, in
respect of the financial years ended N{arch 31,2024,in the absence of SOC report for the
period from April 1',2023 to December 31 , 2023, we are unable to assess whether the
audit trail has been preserved as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP 

/^

Chartered A

Ai
Partner

*
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N{embership No. 089279
ICAI Finn R.gr. No: 010630N/N500036
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6.Annexure ,{,, to the Auditods Report of even date to the memberc DLF cochin Frotels Private

Limited, on the Ind AS financial statements fot the year ended on Match 3l'2025'

Based on the audit procedures performed for the p.rpose of expressing an opinion.on the true atd fak

view of the Ind AS financial statements of the compury ".d 
considering the information and explanations

glven to us and books of accounts and other records provided to us during the normal course of audit, we

hereby rePort that: -

,) In respect of company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangrble Assets' according to

information&explanationandrepresentationglventous:
,)^) (A) 

iilf :,';*.:r,il:ffi[*, 
oJ;o'n 

;":'J*'o"3x'ff "it'ffi':::?'hT'il*?

@) 3i,a'*:;i,T"ffi;T:[,:';:'L:*;;ffiianv' 
hence reportingunder crause 3 (') (^) (B)

b) property, Plant and Equipment -*.r: physically verified by the management during the year'

According to the nror*^iio. 
^.rd 

explanation given to us, no material diicrepancies were noticed

on such veriFrcation'

.)

d)

According to the information and explanations given to us'

property are in the name of the comPany'

the title deeds of all immovable

According to the information and explanatio".' Stt^t to us' Company has not revalued any of its

properry, prant and Equrpment 1*.ria-g righ; of Use Assets) and intangrble assets during the

ye r.

Co

ii)

.) Accord.ing to information & explanations and. representations glven to us by the management, no

proceedings has been irritiatei or are pending- against the iompany for holdrng any benami

property under Benami Trrrrru.tior* groftiUltiol) '{ct, 1988 and rules made thereunder'

(^) The company does not have ay inventory and accordingry, the requirement to report on clause

\ / 
3(ii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company'

(b) Accord.ing to the information & explanation.srr.. to us, the company has not been sanctioned

working capital limits in excess of t S crore, in aggregate,.at 
^ny 

points of time during the year'

from banks or financial instituuons on the basis # rJ.*t y of turrent assets and hence reporting

under clause 3(iixb) of the Order is not applicable'

Accord.ing to the information & explanation glven to us, during the year the company has not

provided any.securify or guarantee oi granted.any loans or advances in ihe nature of loans' secured

or unsecured to companles, ftrms ia urrri .i uruiti y partnershiPs or other parties covered'

Accordingry, the reporting under clause 3 (u1) (a) to ttt lr the order are not applicable to the

ComPanY.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provision of section

185 and 1g6 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and accordingly the requirement to report

onclause3(rv)oftheorderisnotapplicabletotheCompany

d)
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^)

Nlaintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues,

According to the records of the company, the company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-ta*, sal.rl
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and, any other statutofy dues
applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs dray, excise duty, value added tax
and cess were outstanding, as at Nfarch 31,,2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

v

b) According per the information and explanations glven to us, no dues referred in sub-clause (a) are
pending which have been not deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information & explanation glven to us, there v/ere no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

^) According to the information & explanation given to us, the company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or in the Payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) According to the information & explanation glven to us, the Company has not been declared
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government authority.

.) Accordi.g to the information & explanation glven to us, the Company has not taken any term loan
during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence,
reporting under clause 3(i")G) of the Order is not applicable.

d) According to the information & explanation glven to us, on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used
during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

.) The company does not have any associate, joint venture or subsidiary company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i*)G) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

0 The company does not have any associate, joint venture or subsidiary company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i"X| of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

4 According to the information & explanation glven to us, the company has not raised money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, thl
provision of clause 3(lrxr) of the order is not applicable.

b) Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or convertible
debentures. Accordirgly, the provision of clause 3(.Xb) of the order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and According to the information & explanation giyen to us, no
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or r.port.d during the

o
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"*)

&) During the year, no report under sub-section (1,2) of section 1,43 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by cost auditors/secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 201,4 with the Central Goveinment.

G) According to the information & explanation gtven to us, no whistle blower complaint has been
received during the year by company.

In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company is not a
Nidhi comPany. Hence the provision of clause 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

According to the information & explanations glven to us, all transactions defined under Section
188 of the Act are in compliance with Section 188 and details of these transactions are property
disclosed in the Financial Statements. Further, Section 177 of the Act is not applicabti to the
Company.

xiv) According to the information & explanations glven to us, Company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system under provisions of Section 138 of the
Act. Accordingly reporting under clause 3 (*t) (a) and O) "f the Order is not applicable to rhe
comPany.

xv) In our opinion the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected with its dirsglels as teferred under provisions of section 1,92 of the Companies
Act,2013.

4 In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company
is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserves Bank of India Act,
1,934. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(*D (a) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financials or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(""r(b) is not applicable to
the Company.

.) The Company is not a Core Invesffnent Company as defined in regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report in clause 36"0G) is not
applicable to the Company.

d) The Group has one Core Investrnent Company as part of the Group. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not the applicable to the company.

*uii) The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year of Rs.2.83 Lakhs and Rs.0.45
Lakhs during the immediately preceding financiil,year.

"viii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report in clause 3(xviii) is not applicable to the Company.

*i") On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of rcalizatton of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and i\{anagement plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

'We, however, state that this is
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not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. !7e further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guaranree ,,or 

^nyassurance that all liabilities frllitg due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, wiil
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

x-x) According to the infonnation & explanations glven to us, company is not required to make any
expenditure under corPorate social responsibility under provision of section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(*) (u) & (b) "f the oider is not applicable to the compaoy.

xxi) This clause of the order is applicable to consolidated financial statements. The audit report under
reference is on the standalone fmancial statements of the company. Consequently, clause (xxi) of
pangraph of the order is not applicable to the company.

For and on behalf
ARG & Co LLP
Chartered

No.

Ai
v

ICAI Firm R.gr. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurusram
Date: o\ \ dEl )of
UDIN: TSogq'L+? Ertr YTR?DL?-
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ttAnnexure - B" to the Auditors'Repon

Report on the Intetnal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In coniunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended N[arch 31', 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting DLF
Cochin Hotels Private Limited.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Conrols

The Respective Board of Directors of the comp^ny, ate responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Comparry considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAI). These responsibfities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errots, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial informatron, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibiJity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financral controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. \We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 201,3, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operatirg effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a mateial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
desrgn and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system orr.r firrrncial repoiting.

Meaning of Intemal Financial Contols over Financial Reporing

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliabfity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external Pu{Poses in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 

-pertain 
to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
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Inhetent Limitations of Intetnal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper managemeflt override of controls, material misstatements due to .rro,
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over ftnancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intern al financial control
over ftnancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
orrer financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting v/ere operating
effectively as at NIarch 31, 2025, based on the internal control over frnancial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co
Chartered &Co

* *

N'Iembership No L

ICAI Firm R.gr. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurusram
Date: orl tq\ ?O)s
UDIN: ?5oSg Zag ON f 1 T Rqa zL\r'

OHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
prrnciples, and that receipts and expenditures of the comp 

^tty ^re 
being made only in accordance with

authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.



DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited
Lt55 1 01 t IR2007 I'l'(-037 1 53

Regd' ()ifice -\ddress: l)rcmises No.221.2nd frloor, Shopping llall..\riun \[arg,I)Ltr (.in'l)hase-1, (iurugram, ltarvant-122002
Balance Sheet as at March3lrZO2S

Assets

Non-current assets

(a) Propcrn', plant and equipment

ft) {-apital rvork-in-pr)gress
(c) Financial assers

(i) Investmcnts

(ii) Other financial assets

(d) Non-current tax assets (net)

Current assets

(a) Financial assers

(r) t-ash and cash equivalents

(ii) Other bank balances

(iii) Other financial assers

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

(a) Ircluin, share capital

(b) ()ther equin'

Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabiiities

(i) Trade pavable

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

- totd outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small cnterprises

(ii) Other financial liabilities

(b) Other current liabfites
(c) (,urrent tax liabilities (ltier)

Total equity and liabilities

in lakh)

1.732.50

293.16

3

-+

5

6

1

1,132.50

293.16

1.50

1.07

-1.98

1.50

0.18

v
8

I
10

2.80

4.99

0.91

2,033.21 2,036.04

11

t2

13

1.00

2,031.1,1

0+1

002

0.57

0.10

0.00

1.00

2.033.95

0.+1

0.01

0.57

0.10

1+

15

16

2,033.21 2,036.04

v
Summan' of trlaterial accoun ting policies 2

'l'he accompanving notes frrrming an integral part of these financial statements

"\s per our report of even date

lior end on behalf of
ARG & CO LLP
( .hartered . \ccolrnt.ln
(lrltN: 010630\/\ 6)

Iror and bchalt on thc Board o[ l)ircctors
DLF Cochin Hotels Privare Limited

Chandra Agarwal
I)irector
t)lN: 081-l-1980

ERhN

tiAlilsUi

Aiay Gupta

I)'.trtncr

\[cmbcrship \o.: 0892-9

I)lacc : ()urugrrrm

I)Lrtc: 0l \[ar' 302.i

Pankaf

I )ircctor
I)l\: 08698831fr

Particutars Note No. As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,m?,1
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DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited
(.IN: lj551 0 I t IR2007P'|(-0371 53

Regd. ()fFrce ^\ddress: I)remises No. 221,2rrd lrloor, Shopping Nlall,.\rjun trtarg, DLF (-in.Phase-1, ()urugram, llan-ara-122002
statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 3r, zozs

I. Income
( )thcr income 1- 0.31

Total Income 0.31

2.31

2.3 r

II. Expenses

Iiinarrce costs
()ther expenses

Total expenses

III. Profit/(Loss) before tax ( I - II)

fV. Tax expense
(lurrent vear

Earlier vear

V. (Loss) after tax for the year (III-IV)

VI. Other comprehensive loss

-\ i)ltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

ii)loss tax relating to items that will nor be reclassified to
profit or loss

B i)ltems that will be reclassified to profit <>r loss

ii)loss tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss

YII. Total comprehensive (loss) for the year (V-YI)

E,arrn.ing/ (loss) per equity share ({)
Basic

[)i]utcd

l8
19

0.63

2.43

0.63

1..15

3.06 2.08

(2.75)

0.08

0.08

0.23

0.68

0.60

0.08\r'

20

2l

(0.45)

(2.83) (0.4s)

(0.001)

(0.001)

(0.00r)

(0.001)

Summan' of \laterial accounting policies 2

V The accompanving notes forming an integral part of these financial sratements

r\s per our report ofeven date

For and on behalf of
ARG & CO LLP
( -hartcrcd . \cc()ulrtarrts

(lrlt\: 01 N/x

Aia.v

I)artncr

\lcnrbership \o.: 0892=9

Placc: (iurugram

Datc: 01 \fav 2025

For and orr behalf of the Board o[ l)irectors
DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited

Pankaj KuJk* Chandra Agarwal

[)ircctor
I)l\: 0814;1980

Um
[)ircctor

l)l\: 08698831

rt-

Particulars Note No.
For the year ended

March 31,20?5

ln

For the vear ended March
3l,zAU

(2.83)
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DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited
CIN: U55 101 tIR2(X)7PfC0371 51

Regd. ()ifice ,\ddress: Prcmiscs No. 22l,2nd liloor, Shopping Nlall,,\4un Nlarg, DLF (.iw Phase-I, Ciurugpam, llafvana-l22}lt2
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 3L,ZOZi

ln

A. Cash flou, from operating activities
Loss before tax

Adiustments for:
Interest Ilxpenses

Interest Incomc

Operating loss before working capital changes
Adiustments for:
Increase/(decrease) in current tlnancial habrhties/ other current habilitres

(lncrease)/dccreasc in other n()n current /current assets

Less- t'.r-x paid

Net cash ( used in ) operating activities

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds/(ln\-estment) in fixed dcposits

Interest income

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Intcrest pard

Net cash flow generated from/ (used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Operung cash and cash ecluivalents

Closing cash and cash equir-alents*

Balance rvith scheduled banks

- In current accounts

Cash and cash at the end of the

(2.7s)

0.63

(0.31)

0.23

0.63

0.31)
(2.43) 0.55

0.01

1.08

(0.08)

().se)

(0.I8)

().68)
(r.42\ (0.e0)

0.()1

0.31

2.1't9

0.31

0.32 2.40

\r.
().63) ( ).63)

(0.63) (0.63)

(1.73',) 0.87

2.80

1.07

1.93

2.110

(1.73) 0.87

2.801.07

1.07 2.80

(A) Changes in Liabilities arising from Financing activities
Particulars Non-Current

Borrou'ings
Current Borrowings

lst April2024
Interest e\pcnses (excluding interesr accrued)

Interest Paid

Balance as on 31st March 2025

0.57

0.63

0.6.3

V
Particulars Non-Current

Borrou'ings
Current Borrou'ings

lst April2023
Interest e\penscs (excludinu interest accrucd)

Interest Pl.id

Balance as on 31st March 2024

0.57

0.6.3

0.63

0.57

'Ihe accomp',mving notcs forming an inteppal part o[ these t-inancial statements

As per our report of er-cn date

lior and on bchrrli of
ARG & CO LLP
(lhartcred.\c

(F,'R\:0

[;rtr .tnd on bchirli oI Bo:trtl oi l)rrectors
DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited

I)rrrtnc r

\lcrnbcrslrrp \o.: ( llt9279

l)ltcc : (]rrrusram

[)rte: 0l \l:rv 2tt25

Pankaj

l)ircctor
l)l\: (ltt61)ttllil

U Chandra Aganval
[)ircctor

t)l\: ollll-l9ttt)ft

Particulars Forthe year erded
March3t 2025

Fbr the year endcd
l'Iarch 31,2)24

0.57
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DLF Cochin Hotels private Limited
Rc.t{d' ()[fice.\ddress: Premises No.221,2nd Floor, Shopping xlall, .\rjun ,\Iarg, DLF Cin Phase-1, (iurugram, Flarya.a- 12261)2

u55 1 ( ) I I IR2(Xt7Pl',C0.l7 I 53

Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 3lr Z}Zs

A share tal ln

B convertible debentures IN

C Other equin-

in lakh

Nature and purpose of resenre

(t) Other comprehensive income (OCI) reaerve
The company has elected to recognise changes in fair r.alue <,ri certain investmenrs in e<1uin securities in the comprehensir.e income. 'fhese changes are
accumulated within the FYOCI equirv investments resen'e u'ithin ecluin. The companr-rvill transfer amount from this resene tq retain earnings rvhen the
relevent ecluig securiries rvill be derecognised.

(ii) Equity component of Compulsorily convertible debentures

The Companv had issued 63,20,00,000 0.()1o o unsecured Compulsorilv Convertible Debentures (CCDs) of face ralue { l() each aggregating to { 632 lakhs

to its esisting shareholders on rights issue basis. Each CCDs is compulsorih convertible, at the option of CCD Holders, into r:nc number .f Flcluin

Shares in one or more tranches rvithin a penod o[ ten vear from the date o[ allotmenr of the CCDs but not later rhan the expirl of ten years.
(iii) Retained earnings

Represents surplus in statement of ProFrt and Loss

'fhe accompanving notes Forming an integral part of the Frnancial statements

,-\s per ()ur report oi even date

For and on behalfof
.\R(; & (.() LLP

Chartercd . \cc()untlrn ts

(I.R\ o 10(r3()N

For and on bchalI of Roard oi l)ircctors
DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited

Agarwal
I)ircctr rr

l)l\: t)tt1-l-l()lto

l)artn

\lcrnlrcrshrp \rr.: ( ltl9r79

Place : (iurugram

I)atc: Ol \lar 2()25

Pankaj

[ )irector

I)l\: (ttt698lt3l

*

Erluitv sl-rares capital l.()( ) l.()() l.()( )-Ii 
rtal l.()() l.{)( ) l.( )( )

Iiqui r,r... s h ares capital 6,.320.rx r (t,320.0(l 6.320.()( )'l'otal
6,320.()0 6,320.fi) (r,320.00

Balance as at April 07,2023 (4,274.70) (10.e0) 6,320.00 2,034.40
Total comprehensir.e income frrr the
1'ear (0.4s) (0.4s)
Balance as at March 31,2024 (4,275.16\ (10.e0) 6,320.00 2,033.95
Balance as at April 01,2024 (4,275.16) (10.e0) 6,320.00 2,033.95
Total comprehensive income frrr the
\'ear (2.83) (2.83)
Balance as at March 31r2025 (4,27?.99) (10.e0) 6,320.00 2,031.11

Particulare Other
comprehensive

income

Rcsenes and eurplus

Retained

Equity component of
Compulsory C,onve rtible

Debenturc
Total equity

,UUr\1,4i

Perticuhre Balance as at April
01,2023

Issued during
the year

zra at Iesued
2024 the year

Balance a8 at
March 3r"m25

as at April
01,?fr23

as at 31,
the y'eer 20u

aa at
the ycar March 31,2025
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DLF Cochin Hotels Pdvate Limited
U55101HR2007PTC037153
Regd. Office Address: Ptemises No. 221, 2nd Floot, Shopping Mall, Ariun Marg, DLF City
Phase-I, Gurugram, f{ary ana-12;i2002
Notes to Financial Statements fot the year ende d, 3l tr,{atch 2025

Corporate information

DLF Cochin Hotels Pdvate Limited ('the Companr-) is engaged primarily in the business of development and
oPeratlng the hotels. The company was Incorporated on 2?d August 2007. The registered office is situated at
Premises No. 221,2nd Floor, Shopping Nlall Arjun irlarg, DLF Cin, Phase-I ,Gurugram - 122002

The Frnancial statements for the year ended 31 NIarch 2025 were authorised and approved b,v the Board of Directors
on for issue on 01 Ntav 2025

2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

^) Current and non-current classification

The financial statemerits ('financial statements) of the Companr have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind tS) as notified by Nfinist4. of Colporate Affai$ (l\.{CA)
under Section 133 ofthe Companies Act,2013 ( Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended from time to time and presentation requfuemeflts of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statemeflts have been prepated on a going concem basis in accordance with accounting principles
generallr accepted rn India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
cettain financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accoundng
policies. The changes in accounting policies are explained in note 2 (n).

The financial statements are presented in Rupees and a[ values ate rounded to the nearest lakh, except when
otherq/ise indicated.

The Compan,Y presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-cuffent classification. An
asset is feated as cuffent when it is:

months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classihed as non-cuffent.

A liabilin' is current'when:

reporting penod.

The Compan). classihes all other liabiliues as non-current.

0

CH iRED

sets and liabilities
tl t

t\

A

Deferred tax assets and liabiliries are classiFred
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DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited
u55101HR2007PTC037153
Regd. Office Addtess: Ptemises No. 22l,2nd Floor, Shopping Mall, Ariun Marg, DLF City
Phase-I, Gurugtam, Hary ana-722002
Notes to Financial Statements for the yeat ended 31 Match 2025

The operating c-cle is the time benveen the acquisition ofassets for ptocessing and their realisation in cash and cash
equir.alents.

b) Propertl', plant and equipment

Rnugnitior a initial meal ftte
Properfi., Plant and equipment at their initial recognition are stated at their cost of acquisition. On tansition to Ind
AS, the Companl, had elected to measure all of its properq-, plant and equipment at the previous G.\-{P car4ing
value (deemed cost). The cost comptises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discourit and rebates
are deducted in atir"ing at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carr,.ing amourt or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic beneFrts associated with
the item will flow to the Company. !(hen significant parts of plant and equipment are requfued to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them sepamtely based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a maior
inspection is perfotmed, its cost is recognised in the carn'ing amount of the plant and equipment as a rcplacement
if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of proht
ot loss as incurred. The Company identifies and detetmines cost of each component/ part of t]re asset separately, if
the component/ part have a cost vhich is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially
different from that of the remaining asset.

Sabtequent neastmnent (fupnciztior a anfl liws)
Properw, plant and equipment are subsequendy measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation on propert]', plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets as folloss:

Asset category* Estimated useful life as per
Schedule II to the Companies

Act,207j
(in years)

Estimated useful
life

(in vears)

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Computers and data processing units

- Servers and nenvorks
- Desktops, laptops and other devices

Furniture and f,txtures

Off,rce equipment
Vehicles

20-60
10-15

6
a)

5-10
5

8-10

6

3

10

5

8-10

60
15

The residual values, useful lives and method of depre&tion are reviewed at the end of each Frnancial r.ear and
adiusted prospectiveh', if appropdate.

De-nmgtition
An item ofproperr, Plant and equipment and anr- signihcant part initialh' recognised is de-recognised upon disposal
or rvhen no future economic benefits are expected ftom its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the caming amount of the a.sset) is
included tn the statement ofprofit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

c) Capitalwork-in-progress

Capital work-in-proffess represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital proiects under der.elopment and are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if anv. Cost includes land, related
derelopment/ construction costs, borrowing costs an er. direct e\penditure

& Co
(

A !RED

*

FIH\
*

acqulsltlon expenses,



DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited
u55 101H R2007PT C037 153
Regd. Of{ice Addtess: Premises No. 22l,2nd Floot, Shopping Mall, Ariun Marg, DLF City
Phas e-I, Gurugram, Hary ana-122002
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

d) Revenue from contract or services with customer and other streams of revenue

Revenue from conftacts with customers is tecognised rvhen control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Companr expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or sen'ices. The Companv has generallr concluded that it is the principal in its tevenue arangemen$
because it trpicallr controls the goods and services before transferring them to the customers.

i. Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/rcceivable, taking into account contractuall)
deFrned terms of pay'ment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the govemment and is net ofrebates
and discounts. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all ofirs revenue arangements.

Revenue is recognised in the income statement to the extent rhat it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the rerrnue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliablv.

The Company has applied Frve step model as per Ind -\S 115 ?.er.enue from conftacts with customers' to recognise
revenue in the Frnancial statements, The Company satisFres a performance obligation and recognises rerrenue over
time. if one of the following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receir.es and consumes tl-re beneEts provided by the Company's performance as the
Companl performs; or
b) The Company's petformance creates ot enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; ot
c) The Company's performance does not create an asset with an altemative use to the Company and the entity has
an enforceable right to pa).ment for performance completed to date.

For petformance obligations wherc anr of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in
time at rvhich the performance obiigation is satisFred.

Revenue is recognised over a period of time based on various conditions as included in the contracts u,ith customers.
Interest income ftom banks is accounted for on an accrual basis on time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and rate applicable.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts
rr,ith customers are prorided in note 2.2 (o).

e) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs direcdr attributable to the acquisition and/or construction/production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get read)' for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrorving costs are charged to the statement of prorrt and loss as incurred. Borrorving costs consist
ofinterest and other costs that the Companr incurs in connection with the borrorving of funds. Borrou.ing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adiustment to the borrowing costs.

Taxes

Current income tax

Tax expense reco€inized in statemenr of profir an
ones recognized in other comprehensive income

d loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the
or directlr'ln equln'.

& Co
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DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited
u55101HR2007PTC037153
Regd. Office Address: Ptemises No. 221,2nd Floor, Shopping Mall, Arjun Mary, DLF City
Phase-I, Gurugtam, }lalry ata-1122002
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. Current tax is determined as the tax pavable in respect of taxable income for the year and is
computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current incom. ta* relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equiq). durrent tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlfng transaction either in OCI or directly in eq,.iq-. Irtan"g.-ent periodicallv
evaluates positions taken in the tax retums $,ith respect to siruations in which applicabl. tr* ,eg[lrtiorrs-r. sub;..i
to interpretadon and establishes provisions rvhere appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is prorided using the liabilin' method on temporaq differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrving amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable tempotan differences, except:

In respect of taxable temporan' differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in ioint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporarv differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporaq'differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferted tax assets are rccognised for all deductible temporan differences, the carry fonvard ofunused tax credits
and anr unused tax losses. Defened tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable proFrt will
be available against which the deductible temporaq' differences and the carq- forward of unused tax cediis and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The cam'ing amount of deferred tax assets is reriewed at each repoting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that fun:re taxable prohts will allow the deferred ta-r asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to applv in the year rvhen the asset
is realised or the Iiabilio is setded, based on tax rates (and tax [avs) that have been .rrrci"d or robrt"ntively enacted
at the ref,orting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside proFrt or loss is recognised outside proFrt or loss (either in other
cglnr.ehgnl|e income or in equiq). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the undedving transact-ion
either m OCI or directly in equrn.

Defetred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to ser offcurrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entitl.and the same taxation authori6.

seles tax / value added taxes/ GST paid on acquisition ofassets or on incurdng expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax / value added taxes/Goods and sen'ices tax paid,
except:
> \\hen the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or sen'ices is not recoverable from the taxation authori6', in which

case, the_ tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable

> \\'l.ren teceivables and pat'ables are stated with the amount of tax included
The net amount of tax recoverab[e from, or palable to, the taration authoritr. is included as part of receivables or
pavables in the balance sheet.

&C
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DLF Cochin Hotels Ptivate Limited
us5101HR2007PTC037r53
Regd. Office Address: Premises No. 221, 2nd Floot, Shopping MalI, Ariun Matg, DLF City
Phase-I, Gutugram, Haty ana-122002
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ende d, 31 March 2025

g) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Companv assesses whether there is any indication based on intemal/extemal factors, that
an asset ma)' be impaired. If anr such indication exists, the Companv estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGL) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an indir-idual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflorvs that are latgelr independent of those from other assets or groups ofassets. \\hen the carn ing
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impa ed and is written dorwr to
its recovetable amount and the impairment loss, including impairment on inventories, ii recognised in the statement
ofproFrt and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated futue cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current matket assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifi. io the asset, In
determining fair value less costs ofdisposal, recent market ransactions are taken into account. Ifno such transactions
can be identified, an appropdate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or othet available faA value indicators.

The Company bases its impaitment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of Frve veats. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated
and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth yeat.

If, at the reporting date thete is an indication that a prer.iously assessed impaitment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previouslv
recognized are accotdinglr reversed in the statement ofprofit and loss.

h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet compdse cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an
original matutig of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equirzlents consist of unrestricted cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of oustanding bank overdrafts as thev are considered an integral part of the
Companl 's cash management.

i) Provisions, contingent aceets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized onh- when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow ofresources embodring economic benefits will be required to settle thi obtigation
and when a reliable estimate of the amount ofobligation can be made at the reporting daie. Provisions are discounted
to their present values, where the time value of monev is material, using 

" 
.,r.."ni pr.-t"* rate that reflects, when

appropriate, the risks specific to the liabiliq'. \\hen discounting is used, the increaie in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

\\hen the Companl' e\Pects some or all of a prorision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but onlv when the reimbursement is virtualh' certain. The expense relating to a prcvision iipresented
in the statemenr of profit and loss net of anv reimbursemenr.

Onefous contfacts

If the Companv has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured
as a provision. How'ever, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Lompanr recognises
anr impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to thar conftact.



Possible obligations rvhich will be conftrmed onlv b1- future events not wholly wrthin the control oFthe Companr,
of
Present obligauons arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources rvill be requ6ed
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except rvhen realisation of income is viruallv certain, related
asset is disclosed.

D Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception u,hether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, i[ the contract
con\re)'s the right to control the use of an identif,red asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Compan,-\. aPplies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Companv recognises lease liabilities to make lease pa)'menrs and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlving assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Companv tecognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the unded.,rrng
asset is available for use). fught-of-use assets are measured at cost, less an]' accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses and adjusted for anv remeasurement oflease liabi.lities. The cost ofright-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease palments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received.Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-Iine basis over the shorter of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If oumership of the leased asset tnnsfers to the Companr at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise ofa puchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated usefirl life of the asset.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Companv recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease palments to be made over the lease term. The lease parments include fixed palments (including in-substance
fixed pavments) less anl lease incentires receivable, variable lease pa\-rnents that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid undet residual value guarantees. The lease pay.rnents also include the exercise pdce of
a purchase option reasonablr certain to be exercised by the Companl and payments ofpenalties fot terminating the
lease, if the lease term teflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. \rariable lease parrnents that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the er-ent or ctndition that triggers
the pa\-ment occufs.

In calculatrng the Present value of lease parments, the Compan)' uses its incremental borro\\.ing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate im lease is not readilv determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount o[ lease liabilities ect the accretion of interest and reduced [or

a

a
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the lease pavments made. In addition, rhe carn'ing ues ls remeasured if there is a modification.
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An onerous conftact is a contract undet vrhich the unavoidable costs (i.e. the costs that the Company cannot avoid
because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic binefits expected to
be received under it. The unavoidable costs uoder a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from theiontract,
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties atising from failure to frrlFrl it.

These estimates are reviewed at each teponing date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
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a change- in the lease term, a change in the lease papnents (e.g., changes to futute payrnents tesulting from a change
in an index or (ate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assissment of 

"., 
opion to purchaie

the undetlr.'ing asset.

The Companv's lease liabilities are included in "other Frnancial liabilities,,

Shott-temr leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that have
a lease tefm of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of lorv-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment ihat are considered to be
low value. Lease pa).rnents on short-term leases and leases of lorv r-alue assets are ricognised as expense on a straight-
Iine basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessot

Leases in which the Company does not transfet substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as opetating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a staight-line basis over the tetm
of the reler.ant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrvisg 2g1p11rr1ofthe leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the pedod inl*'hich they are eamed. Fit-out rental income is recognised in the
statement of pfofit and loss on accrual basis.

Leases ate classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership uansfer from the
Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic tate of reh.m on the net investrnent outstanding in respect of the lease.

k) Financialinstruments

A Frnancial instrumeflt is any conhact that gives rise to a Enancial asset ofone entiq. and a financial liabilitv or equity
instrument of another entity.

1) Financial Assets

I tial nngtitior a medrunnefi

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequendv measured at amottised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of hnancial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's conrractual cash flow
characteristics and the Companris business model for managing them. \\ith the exception of rade receivables that
do not contain a signiFrcant Frnancing component or fot rvhich the Companr. has applied the practical expedient, the
Companr initialh' measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a Frnancial asset not at fair value
through proFrt ot loss, net of transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Companr has applied the practical expedient are measured at thi transaction price
determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting poLicies in section 2.2 (d) T.evenue from con&act or senices
with customer and other sreams of revenue'.

In order flor a financial asset to be classiFred and measured at amorised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash florvs that are 'soleh' palmeots ofprincipal and interest (SPPI)'on the principal alount outstanding.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument levei.

The Compan\''s business model for managing financial to horv it manages irs financial assets in order to
generate cash t'lo\\.s. 'I'he business model derermines
t'los,s, selling the financial assets, or both

s,ill result from collecting contractual cash
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S u brcq u e n t rn easu re m e n t

i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost - a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the
follorving conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model rvhose obiectir.e is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows; and

r Contractual terms of the asset give rise on speciFred dates to cash florvs that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPD on the principal amount ourstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequentlv measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

ii. Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, ioint ventures and associates - Investments in equirl'
instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS
27'Separate Financial Statements'.

lll Investments in other equity insffuments - Investments in equi6 instruments rvhich are held for trading
are classiFred as at far value through profit or loss (F\TPL). For all other equin'insrruments, rhe Companv
makes an irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument bv instrument basis, to classi$: the
same either as at flair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCD or fair value through proht or loss
(FVTPL). Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequentlv transferred to statement
of profit and loss. Horvever, the Compan)' transfers the cumulative gain or loss within equin. Dividend on
such investments are recognised in statement of profit and loss unless the dividend cleady represents a
reco\:ery of part of the cost of the investment.

Investments in mutual funds - Inr.estments in murual funds are measured at fair value through proht or
loss (tr\TPL).

lv.

Fair value changes on instruments measured at FVTPL is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the
Companv has elected to measure such insmrment at FYOCI. Fair value changes on instruments measured at FVOCI
are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequentlr reclassiFred to the Statement ofProfit and
Loss.

De -ntogn itio n of f n a neia I ax ett

A 
.Iinancial asset (or, where applicable, z part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

ptimarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Companr's balance sheet) when:

The rights to recei'e cash florvs from the asset har.e expired, or
The Compan]'has transferred its rights to receive cash florvs from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pav the received cash florvs in full rvrthout material delav to a third parq, under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Companv has transferred substantially all the risks and rervards of the asset,
or (b) the Compant has neither transferred nor retained substantiallv all the risks and rervards o[ rhe asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lorver of the
original carning amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Compan,v could be required
to repal'.

a

a
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I npaitz e n t of Ji na n cial are tt
In accordance rvith Ind '\S 109, the Companr applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for Frnancial assets.

ECL is the wcighted-average of difference between all conftactual cash flows that are due to the Companv in
accordance with the conttact and all the cash flows that the Compan)' expects to receive, discounted at the original
effecdve interest rate, with the respective risks of default occuring as the weights. \\hen estimating the cash flLws,
the Companv is required to consider -
. AII contractuxl terms of the financial assets (including prepal'rnent and exteflsion) over the expected l.ife of the

assets.

. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the cofltractual
teffns.

(i) Tmde rcrciaabht

In respect of trade receivables, the Compan) applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requites
measurement ofloss allowznce at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected cedit losses
are the expected credit losses that result ftom all possible default er.ents over the expected life of a financial
instrumenr.

(i i) Other f nardal atnt t
In respect ofits other financial assets, the Compan)' assesses if the credit risk on those Frnancial assets has increased
significandy since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significandl. since initial recognition, the
Companv measufes the loss allowance at an amount equal to l2-month expected credit losses, else at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected cedit losses.

\\tren makhg this assessment, the Companv uses the change in the risk of a default occurdng over the expected life
of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk ofa default occuring on the financial
asset as at the balance sheet date vrth the risk of a default occurring on the Frnancial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost ot effort,
that is indicative of signif,rcant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Companr- assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significandv since initial recognition if the Frnancial asset is determined to
have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

2) Non-derivative frnancial liabilities

hitial nngnition a rzealtn ent

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borowings and par.ables, net of dLecdr. atuibutable tansaction costs.

The Companv's financial liabilities include trade and other pavables, securitl' deposits, loans and borrowings and
othet financial liabilities including bank or-etdrafts and Frrancial guarantee contracts.

Sttbseqre meuunme

Subsequent to initial recognition, the measurement of Frnancial liabiliues depends on their classification, as described
below;

ltau atd bormwingt

After initial recogniti()n, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequentlv measured at amortised cost us1ng
the E IR method. Gains and losses are recognised in s when the liabilities are derecognised as rvell as
through the EIR amortisarion process. A
on acqllisition and fees or costs that are
costs in the statemenr of profit and loss.

mortised l taking into accoLlnt anv discount or premium
an lnte The L,IR amortisation is included as f,lnance
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F i n a n cia / gaa ra n tee co n lra ctt

Financial guarantee contracts ate those contracts that require a patment to be made to teimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the speciFred parq' fails to make a pa1'ment $/hen due in accordance vith the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts ate recognized as a Frnancial liabiliq' at the time the guarantee is issued at
fair value, adiusted for transaction costs tlat are direcdr attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently,
rhe Labihn is measured ar rhe higher of the amount of expected loss allotance determled as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumularive amordzation.

D*recugnitiot o-ff naacial liabiltiet
,\ financial liabiliq' is de-recognised when the obligation under the liabiliw is dischalged or cancelled ot expLes.
\Itren an existing financial lixbi.lin'is replaced by another from the same lender on substanrially differenr terms, or
the tetms of an existing liability are substantiallv modihed, such an exchange or modiFrcation is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liabilitr and the recognition of a ne',v liabilin-. The difference in the respective carq'ing
amounts is recognised in the statement ofprofit or loss.

\/ 3) Reclassilication of frnancial instruments

The Compant, detetmines classiFrcation of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets w'hich are equiq. instruments and financial liabilities. For
financial assets which are debt insttuments, a reclassification is made onlt if thete is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of extemal or intemal changes rvhich ate significant
to the Companv's operations. Such changes are evident to ertemal parties. A change in the business model occurs
when the Companv either begins or ceases to perform an activitl that is significant to its operations. Ifthe Companv
reclassifies Frnancial assets, it applies the reclassiFrcation prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first
da.v of the immediatelv next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate
any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

4) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities ate offset and the net amount is reponed in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and setde the liabilities simultaneously.

l) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments such as Tmde Pal'ables etc at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that vould be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabilin in an ordedy transacdon between
market panicipants at the measurement date. The fair value ofan asset or a liabiLitl is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liabilir, assuming that market parti+ants act in their
economic best interest. A fait value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market panicipant's
abilin to generate economic benefits br using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that rvould use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measute fair value, maximising the use of relevant obsen able inputs and minimising the use of
unobsen'able inputs.

-,L1l assets and liabilities for which fair value is measuted or disclosed in the Frnancial statements are categorised vithin
the fair value hierarchv, described as follorvs, based on the lo\-est level input that is signiFrcant to the fair value
measurement as a u'hole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusred) marker p kets for identical assers or liabilities
Level 2 - \'aluation recl-rniques for

a

EREDmeasurement is drrecth- or indirecth' o
put that is significanr ro the lair \-alue
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. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for vhich the lowest level input that is signiFrcant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recuring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred benveen letels in the hierarchv b,r re-assessing .utegorisation (based on the lorvest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurernent as a-rvhote) at the Jd of"each reporting period.

Extemal valuets are involved for valuation ofsigniFrcant assets, such as properdes and unquoted Frnancial assets, and
significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement of extemal valuers is decided upon annuallr br
the management. Valuers are selected based on market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
ptofessional standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Companl' has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the natute, charactedstics and risks ofthe asset or liabilin'and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

m) Eamings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated b1'dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number ofequin'shares outstanding during
the period. The weighted-average number of equitr shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation ofshares) that have
changed the number of equiq shares outstanding, without a coffespondiflg change in resources.

For the pulpose of calculating diluted eamings per shate, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equirr
shareholders and the wtighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equin' shares.

n) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Companr applied for the fust-time certain standards and amendments, which ate effective fot annual periods
beginning on ot after 1 -\pril 2024, but do not have a material impact on the standalone financial statements of the
Companv.

Ind AS I 16: Leases - T"he NICA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
202'1, which amended Ind AS 116, Leases, w'ith respect to Lease Liabilin in a Sale and Leaseback. The amendment
specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liabilin. ansing rn a sa]e and leaseback
ftansaction, to ensure the seler-lessee does not recognise anl amount of the gain or loss that felates to the right of
use it retains. The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April202,1 and must
be applied retrospectivelr to sale and leaseback tansactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind
AS 116.

These amendments had no material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Companr during the ,r'ear

Ind AS 117: Insarqnce- The \[tnism' of Corporate Affain (NIC-\) notiFred the Ind lS 117, Insurance Conuacts, r.ide
nodFrcation dated 12.\ugust 202'1, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) .\mendment Rules,202.l,
rvhich is effectir.e from annual reporting penods beginning on or after 1 \ril 202-1.

Ind .\S 117 Insurance Contacts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covedng
recognition and measuremenq presentation and disclosure. Ind -\S 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts.
Ind AS 117 applies to all npes of insurance contracts, regardless of the trpi of entities that issue them as rvell as to
certain guatantees and financial instruments rvith discretionan participation features; a fev scope exceptions will
applv. Ind -\S 117 is based on a general model. suppleme-nte4 br.:

. -\ specrtic adaptatlon for contracts wirh dtect (the variable fee approach); and
o

. A simplihed approach (the premium allocation
I1

short-duration contracts
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These amendments had no material impact on the standalone Frnancial statements of the Companr during the r.ear

New and amended standards, not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not r.et effective as on the date.

o) Significant management iudgement in applying accounting policies and estimation unceftainty

The preparation of the Companyt financial statements requires man€ement to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts ofreveflues, expenses, assets and liabilities, anJ the related disclosures
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Llncertaintl about these assumptions and estimates could rcsult in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carq.ing amount ofassets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Signilicant management iudgements

The following are significant management iudgements in applr ing the accounting policies of the Companr that have
the most significant effect on the Frnancial statements.

kngnlm of defemd tax aseh - Tlte extent to vhich defeffed tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probabilin' of the furure taxable income against which the deferred tax asseti can be utilized.
Eaalaation of i icaton -t'or inpairnert of atsefi - The evaluation of applicabi.liq. of indicators of impairment of assets
tequires assessment of several extemal and intemal factors which could result in deterioration of ticoverable amount
of the assets.

Clasiintion of leatet - T"he Companv enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the
leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but
not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option to purchase and estimated
certaintr- of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset's economic life, proportion of present
value of minimum Iease papnents to fair value ofleased asset and extent of specialized natui oithe leased a.r.t.

Detentitiry the leare tem of L,zntrddr pith renepal ard tetmirulion optiott (Compan,r as lessee)- The Companr determines
the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with anv periods covered by an option to extend the
Iease if it is reasonablr certain to be exercised, ot any periods covered bv an option to terminaie the lease, if it is
teasonablv certain not to be exercised. The Companv has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Companv applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonablr certain whether or not
to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise eithet the renewal or termination. -\fter the commencement date, the Company reassesses
the lease term if there is a signiFrcant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affecis its abiliw
to exercise or not to exercise the option to rene'd/ or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Inpdime of finantia/arelr - At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates obsen ed ovet expected life,
the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Proatiottt - At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Compant assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding conting-ent liabilities. Hosivet, ihe actual
future outcome ma\' be different from this judgement.

Reaerue.fivm L'zfirddJ pilh csrtomen- The Companl' has applied judgements that significantll affect the determination
of the amount and timing ofrevenue from contracts with customers.
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Significant estimates

The key assumptions conceming the futute and other key soutces of estimation uncertainq. at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrr..ing amounts of assets and liabiliti"es, are
described belorv. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on prrr-.t.., available when the financial
statements wete ptepared. Existing citcumstances and assumptions about futwe developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are be\:on6 ,5. .orrool of the iompany. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when thev occur.

Net nalpbk aalue of inettory -The deierm.ination of net realisable value of inventory involves estimates based on
prevailing market conditions, current prices and expected date of commencement and complet-ion of the project, the
estimated fuhr1s 5slliog priqs, cost to complete projects and selling cost. The Company also involves specialist to
perform valuations of inventories, wherever requited.

UteJal liar oJ' deprcdable/ anortiubh aset - Nltnzgement reviews its esdmate of the useful l.ir.es of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utilit\. of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility ofassets.

llalualion o;f im.efiiefi pnPerlJ - lnvesunent properh'is stated at cost. However, as per Ind AS 40 there is a requitement
to disclose fait value as at the balance sheet date. The Companv engaged independent valuation specialists to
determine the fair value of its investment propeltv as at reporting date. The determination of the fair value of
inresmrent properties requircs the use of estimates such as future cash flows from the assets (such as lettingF, future
revenue streams, capital r,alues of lxtures and fittings, anv envfuonmental mattets and the overall repair and condition
of the propern) and discount rates applicable to those assets. In addition, development dsks (such as construction
and letting risk) ate also taken into consideration rvhen determining the fair rzlue of the properties undet
consEucdon. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

Inpahment of Pmpenl phnt equiPnefi, L,r,eJtne pmperlier dnd CWIP - Impairment exists when the carr).ing value of an
asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher ofits fait value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budgets. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used fot the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used.

D$ned beneft obligatior (DBO) -\lznagement's esdmate of the DBO is based on a number of underlving assumptions
such as standatd rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of fun-re salan increases. Variation in
these assumptions mav signiFrcandv impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair ulae meavrcment disclovrct - Nlanagement applies valuation techniques ro determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves der.eloping estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

l/alualion oJinuestme in ubtidiaiw, joitrt rcrt EJ dnd d$lLidter - Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
are carried at cost. At each balance sheet date, the management assesses the indicators of impairment of such
investments. This requires assessment of several extemal and intemal factor including capitalisation rate, ke1'
assumption used in discounted cash flow'models (such as revenue growth, unit price and discount rates) or sales
comparison method which mal affect the carn'ing value of inyestments in subsidiaries, loint ventures and associates.
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3 ,plant and in lakh

*Note: The above Propern represent a land parcel admeasuring 1.25 acres situated at fiort Cochrn village, Kochi T'aluk, Emakulam, District.

\,,

v

,/a o

*
H ED

'o
TS *

EL'

Particulars Freehold Land'
Gross Value

01,2023at 1,,732.50
.\ddition the

Delction during the r.ear

at March 31,2024 1,732.50
.\ddition the t'car

Balance as at March 31r2025 1,732.50

Accumulated depreciation/impairment
As at April 01,2023

.\ddition dunng the r,ear

Deletion during the rear
As at March3l,2024
-\ddition during thc vear

Deletion during the vear

Balance as at March 31,2025

Net Block
Balance as at March 3Lr2024 1,732.50
Balance as at March 3112025 1,732.50

I)eletion during the vcar

/
{



DLF Cochin Horels Private Limired
(-l\: L'i5l(tl [{R2(X)]P]11037t 53

Regtl ()iticc.\tidrtss: Prcmrses\o. 12l,2ndFlrxrr.Shripprnu\lall,.\r[rn\LrrgDLli(-rnl)hasc[,Gunrqram,tl.rnan.r.l]ftiof
Notes ro the Financial StatemenB for the year ended March Jl, 2025

Amount ({ in

4 Capitel work in progress

Prolect rJcrelopment e\penses

Interest capltalrzed

Capital work in progress

Gross carrying vlaue

As on April, 01,2023

.\cltlrttrn dunng thc r.rar

[)clctron dunnq rhe rear

As at March 31,2024

\ddrtron dtrrrnu rhe vear

l)eletr rn clurrng thc vear

Balance as at March 31, 2025

IT\IVESTMENTS
5 In Compulsorily convertible debenrures (unquotcd)

Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
t+,()(l,txX) l) ()1" 

" 
(.ompulsorrlr cenvertrble debenrures ,:'i t lt) each. DLF

Recrcahonal Iirundatrrrn I-rmrtrd' r'Fellrrn' subsrdran c()mpar]vl

[-ess Prr,rrsron tirr drmunrtron tn \-alue .)i lnvestmrnts

In Equit shares (unquoted)
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income

l(IIX)'preuous rear Ill(X)l)] equrn rl:,rft,s ot Rs ltl each

DLE Recrc.rtrrtnrl fjountlarllr l,rmrtctl ' Fell,lv sutrsrtlan.c(lmpan\.,
[.css: Pr,,rrston trtr dtmunrttrrn rn va]rrc rrt tnrfsttrrt,nrj

Cosr o[ [nvestment

Farr \-alue g,un7'4oss) as ,lt \t,rrch 31, 2()25

.\.E+euate anxrunt oi unquotcd rnvestmcntJ

,\ggreg,rre Jmount of tmp.urment rn rirlue rrf urr-csrments

6 Other financial assers

(f 'nsecured, considered good)
Srcurrtv tlt?, 'srrs

7 Non-current rax assets (net)
lrlc{,n]( l,l\ [),IJ ll(,t , )l J]rr,r't\lrrt{

,.31

287.85
3.31

287.85
293.16 293.t6

293.t6 293.16

293.t6 D3.16

293.16

state. However, the companv rntends to countrnue rts plan to delerop the enusaged proiect m the near hlture.

(a) CWIP ageing schedule

As at

As at March 2021

(b) For caprral-work{n Progress, whose cornplehon ts overdue or has exceeded rts cost compared to rts ongna-l plan, tbllowrng C!('IP completron schedule

"I'he Companv undenakes several long-term duratron proiects at a nme whrch range between 3 to 6 yeJrs. In some cases rhe proiects may get temporanly suspended or therr

ls confident of resuming the projerr rn fuure.

29-1.1(r

Amount ln

Amouot ln

ln

\/
l+0.(I)

i 1+0.00)

I +( ).r){ }

'l+{r(x),

10.89

(10.8e)

l0 89

ll0.8ei

Ittvestce compatry rs neqeh\-e.rs on halance sheet dxte. rhe lnrestments hare treen remeasured at Farr r.alue dunng the c-urrent vear

I i{r s9

lrl) rt9

I i{| lI)
I it) ll0

I ;rl

l;t).89
'l ;t ) u9)

lil)8q
l ;0 1i9

l. i()
1.50

r) ili

oc

*

L

['r,riects tcmporanlJ suspended' 293.16 293.16

293.16 293.16

Prr,lects tempr,rarrh suspentlcd' t93. l 6 293. l6
293. l6 293.16

Projects temporanlv suspended t93. I 6 293.16

293.16 293.16

E H

*

1.50

0. t8

al
M.rch 3L 2{}25

A.s et
Itl*tcbl|2W

B

trIP Totel*kes .h"n 1yeer l-2 ycrrr ?-3years lfl66 rf,ra Jy6as

CINP
Amounr ia C$EIP for a year

ToteF
Lees thea lycet l-2 ycart 2-3 ye*rr Mort ttenS.vcrs

CwIP
,lctcd in

Totrltkse &.r I Ycar l-2ycue 23yca,rs Morc 6er3.vcen



DLF Cochin Hotels prirzte Limired
clN: L iSl{)l I{R2tX)7p1'(.o371 53

Resd ( )itrcc \ddrcssr ['remtses \o 22l,2ncl Floor, Shopprne \lall. -\tun \larg, DI-F (]rn phase,l, (iurugranr, t{an.rna-l?2ti{t2
Notes ro the Financial Statements for the year ended Merch 3! Z)25

8 Cash and cash equivalenrs
Balances rvrrh scheduled banks

In current.lccounts

9 Other bank balences

- Ilank deposrts wlth nr.rruns more than J months bur less rhan 12 months

l0 Other financial asset
L nsecrrred, consrdered grod

' Othcr recel'ables

*

ffhrs space has been rntenrronirllv leti blank)

l.()l :.8{r
t.07

+.98

2.80

-1.9()

{.98 {.99

0.91

0.91

0

{
*

ER ED

Paniculare A3 at As et
MercL3LZ}2{ IT Merch 3t, Z)25



DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited
(_J\. L ;il{rl FlRl(x}rlrl1.o17l ;3

Reed. ()ftice \ddress: I)remrscs \o 12l. fnd Flrxrr, Shrpprng \lall.
Notes to the Financial Statemens for

.\rlun \[rrq, Dl-F (-rn [)h.rsc [. (iurugrlrr]. [{anan.r-l]:0Ol
the year ended Match 3\2A25

ll (A) Authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capitar and par varue per shere
Authorised Capital
llNX,t) /preur)us l.ur . 10,(IX)l F_<1urn .shares oi { 10, - c,rch

J6()(XX,() lpre\1{lus \cnr ;60()()tX,.. l)reterencc Slrrtes of { l(}(},, cach

Issued, subscribed and paid-up shere capial
lll()(ltl pre\r()us re,lr l(),()l)l)) liqurn.sharcs oi { lt} _ each tirilr pard up

(B) Reconciliation of numbers of equiry- shares outst nding at the beginning and xt the end of the vear

Equitl shares

-{t rhe begrnnrng oithe re.rr
Add : (ihange tlurrng the veirr

At the end of rhe vear

and restrictions lo shares

(D) Shareholding details of the companv

(E) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares (Equiry-)

(F) Shares held bv promorers at rhe end ofthc vear

1.0(.1

5.(n [).()()
ltx)

5.6{ }( }.rX )

5,601.00 5,601.00

I ()r) I l)tt
1.00 1.00

No, ofshares No. of shares
l(x)tx) l(x)t)o

r0000 10000

leti blankT

'(
!

*

Rights, preferences and restrictions ( including
shares

restrictions on distributions of dividends and repavmenr ofcapiral) attached ro rhe class of Tlpe of shares

I'he has class of sharesc,)nrpJn] onli- ofvalue Eachshare.equrt! harrn.q pnr oiholder sharesper cntrtled DnetO \t )tg .lnshare.equrt\ rlreper
of rl:c thc .,1Itr rklcrsLqurdanon shares bet rIl tocntrtlt tiuompan\'. equrq' recelve t.,fiii('r. rhe tier rrldlstrtbutta,n .ilIrcmrlnlng cr)mpJn\,,'l'heJlll()UntS. rvrlldrstnhutron bc lr) nurnhcrrhr ()iproPOftron heldshares rhc slrareholders.equri)-" bv

Equrn

Lodhr Properrv company limrted parent Companr-) along wrth tts Nomrnees Erlurn, I (x r()l )

Lodhi Prrpem' Lrmrted parent

As er
Itdarch 3t 2025

As et
l\laachrr"nU

a)nt
rs

,,t'

Nstne of ttc ch.rcLoldcr Cbes ofahercs fugregarc numbcr
ofghrrte held

Neoc of lhe eharetoHer
No of chnrcE teH ia tht coopaoy Poccotege of,lhats

Hd
lrs I(x)rr) l0().(t(1. i,

Namc of 6e rhercholder Clietc ofsha$cs No ofs&ati hdd i!
rgt,lgitgby boldbg

coBPey

Pcrctaqge of
3h$ca bcld

Petccatryr cheagc

Lodhr Equrn I ( X-l(}(l I I )l-lo o



DLF Cochin Hotels private Limited
CIN: U55 101HR2007I'IC037 153

Regd Ottrce Address: Premises No 221, 2nd Flmr, Shopping Mall, Ariun Nlarg DLF Cirv phase-I, Gurugrarn, FJaoana-I22002
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, Z)25

12 Other equity
Statement of profit and loss
As per last balatcc sheet

I-oss for dre vear

Net deGcit in the statement of pm6t md loss

Other Compreheroivc Income
As per last balance sheet

Addition during dre ycrr
Deletion durhg dre trar
Net deficit il thc statcmerrt of po6t md los

Equity component of compulso{y converts:blc debenhrreo
,\ per last balmce sheet

Dcletiou during the _vear

Total orher equiry

13 Trade payable
Total outstanding dues ofcreditors micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total ourstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

14 Other financial liabilities
llrterest accrued on CCD's

15 Other current liabilities
Stan:torr dues pavable

16 Curent tax liabilities (Net)
Currcnt tax liabilin'

*

(+,275.16)

(?.83)

(4,27.1.70)

(0.r5)

(.1,?75.1 5)

00.e0

(10.e0

f),J2{ ).1)o

(r,320.(i)

3,il33.9i

0.{1

0.01

0.57

0.57

0. l0

(A)

(B)

(+,777 .ee)

00.e0)

(10.e0)

6,31( ).(l(.)

(q

(A)+(B)+(q

Go

6,320.0r1

:,t.,-31. I I

0.+l

0.02

\-,

0.43 0.42

to Micro and Small

above. The same has been relised upon by the auditors.

Schedule as at March 2025

Schedule as at March 2024

0.57

0.57

0. 10

0.r0

0.00

s( !

o H

(i) the prinicpal amounr and rhe
as at the encl oieach accounting

interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
]'ear 0.-lt 0.+1

interest paid by dre buyer in terms of section 16, ofthe l{icro Small
;rnd trleclium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along rvith the amounts of the

mrde to the supplier beyond the appointed day dunngeach accoundnglear

(ii)'l'he .rnrount of

N*il Nil
(iii) the

(rvhich

amount oiinterest clue md payable tbr the period of delyed in making payment
have been paid but beyond the appointment day during the vear) but without

adding the interest specified under this Act.
\il Nil

interest accured and reamining unpaid at the end of each accounting(iv) the amount of
vear and

Nit Nil
(r) the arnount of further interest remaining
vears, until such date rvhen rhe interest dues

due and payable even in the suceeding

as above are actually paid to the small
rprise, tbr the purpose ofdisallorvnace as a deductile expendirure under this act

\it N..il

(i) r\tSNtE-Not due 0..1I 0.t I
trlSr\ tIl-Due

C)drers 0.02 0,02
dues-l\1SN{E

dues-Odres
'fotrl

0..13 0.13

(i) i\tS\tE-Not due 0.+1 0.{l
NtS\lE-Due

C)$em 0.01 0.01
dues-NtSNIE

ducs-Odrers

Total 0.12 o.+2

RTERED

&

*

0.00

0.10

\
L



DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited
CIN: 1I551 01 t IR2007P'I'(1037 1 53

Itegd. ()ffice .\ddress: Prcmises No. 221,2nd Floor, Shopping Nlall, .\rjun N{arg Dl.F Cin Phase-1, (iurugram, Han.ana-122002
Notes to the Financial Statemenrs for the year ended March 3l,zo2s

17 Other income
Rental income

Interest incr>me from

- Fixed dcposits

- income tax refund

- CCD's

18 Finance costs

Interest on C(lD's

19 Other expenses

Rates and taxes

Legpl and professional

N{iscellaneous expense

Pavment to auditors:

-Audit fee

-Reimbursement of expenses

-GST

20 Tax expense

Current tax

Earlier vear tax adiustments

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and l<lss

Accounting (loss)/profrt before income tax

Staruton'income tax rate of 25.77o/o (?revious vlr.ar -25.779/o)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating
taxable income:

Deferred tax asset not created on business loss account of lack of reasonable
certainfi'

1'ax impact of expense disallowed under income tax -\cr
fax related to earlier vears

Total tax expense

21 Eamings/(Loss) per equiry share

Profit/(l-oss) f<>r the vear

Profit/(l-oss) attnburable to equin. shareholders

'lirtal numbcr of ecluin' sharcs ,ursranding at rhc begrnning of rhe 
'ear'lirtal number of ecluin' sharcs r>urstanding at the end of rhe r.car

\\'eighted average of equin shares outstandlng

Nominal valuc of etluin' share ({)
Basic and dilutcd eamings pcr equrn. share ({)

0.30

0.00

0.01

(t in lakh

2.00

0.30

0.01

2.31,

0.63

0.63

0.31

0.63

0.63

\-, 0.02

0.94

1.00

0.04

0.94

0.38

0.02

0.07

0.38

0.02

0.07

2.43 t.45

0.08 0.60

0.08

0.08 0.68

(2.1s)

(0.6e)

0.77

0.23

0.06

0.54

0.08

0.08 0.68

(0.15)

(0.4s)

632.10

632.1 0

6i2.1 0

10.00

(0.001)

(2.83)

(2.83)

632. I 0

632.10

632.10

10.00

(0.004)

Particulars For the year ended March
3t5m?5

Forthe yearended
March 31,20?y'-

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting prolit multiplied by statutory income tax rate for the year indicated are as follows:

*



22. Ratio Analvsis

DLF Cochin Hotels private Limited
u551 oI tIR200rP1'c037t 53

Regd'()[fice,\ddress:l)remisesNo.22l,2ndFloor,Sh.ppingNlall,.\riunNlarg, l)l,F(.in.phase-l,Gurugram, Lrar\-ma-1220o2
Notes to the Financiar statements for the year ended March 3r, z02s

CH D

*

\,,

v

o

a

\H

(") (-urrcnt r:rtio Dccrease in receirable 5.5() 1.99 -3l",,(b) Debt-equin ratio \.\ \,\ \.\ N,\(.) Debt sen'ice c()\'erage ratl( ) \.\ \,\ N.\ \.\(d) Return on equin ratio [)ecrease in income and incre:rse in e\Pcn scs 0.(n)) 0.ot)) 53-1",,(e) Invenron turnor-cr ratio \.\ N.\ \.\ \.\(f) Trade receilable turn<>r'er ratio \-\ N.\ N.\ \.\(g) 'l'rade p:rilblr turfl(,\'er rab{, \.\ \,\ N.\ \,.\(h) tumo\.er ratr()et \.\ \.\ \\ N-\(i) Net ratr( ) \,\ \.\ \.\ \.\(i) Return on capital emplol-ed l,oss in the current (0.00) 0.00 -1282',,,
(k) Return on inr-cstment \.\ \.\ \;,\ \.\

Current raticr Current ^\ssets : Current
(b) Debt riltr() -l'otal 

Debr + Total

(c) Debt sen'ice coverage raticr
belcrre tional nterest ;rnd!.arrrini,,s rtems, T:rx +(-oste\cep IF'inance madePrincipal Repalrncnrs

the [or n()n-currcnI curren
(d) on equrn ra&o

,i Shareholders'Net

(") Inventon' turnover rati<r
Cost ofland, and others + Aconstructed Inventorics

(f) "l'rade receivable turnover ratirr Revenue from +^\ J'rade Receivables

(g) rade pavable rurnoler rati() Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others + Ayerage accounts

Net turn()\'er ratlo 'Iotal Sales - Total
Nct ratio \et Profit after'['ar - Rer-enue tiom

(i) Rcturn on capital EBI'I'+ i.e. Shareholders non current liabdities
Return on investment Net retum on lnvestment + Cost o[ Inr-estment

S.No Ratio Reaeon for Variarion more than 25yo As at
March 31,20?5

Ae at March 31,

2024
Variation more

than?S o/o

\'ear

S.No Ratio Forrrrule

/rt



DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited
u55 I () 1 t IR2(n )7P1'C037 1 53

Regd' ()ffice -\ddress: Premiscs No. 22l,2nd Flo<;r, Shopping Nfall, '\riun Nlarg, Di-[r (]in phase-1, ourugram, ganana-122002
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3t,Z1Zs

23 1'he Companv has accumulared loss amountin.q to Rs. 4,277.99 lacs (Previr)us vcar Rs.1,275. 16 lacs). Dunng the [i\,29-21, the parenr (.ompanv has
infused Rs (r,320 lacs in f<rm o[(-Cl)s and has rrlso assuretl its continued financial support to the ()ompanv itselfand thlrugh the Intermediate
Parent (',mpanv, as and rvhen needed, so as t() enable the Companl t() continuc its rrrrcratirms as a going concem in foreseable turure. ,\ccrlrdinslv,
the financial starements ha'e been prepared r>n a (i<lins concem basis.

24 Related parry- disclosures

Inftlrmltion required to bc disclosed under IND .\S 24 on "Relatetj Parn Disclosures,,

a) Relationships

(i) Ultimate Parent companies at any time during the year
Raidhani Inl-estment & .\gcncies Pnr-are Limrtcd

(ii) Intermediate Parent Company at anv time during the vear
I)LF Lirruted

(iii) Parent companies at any time during the year
Ltilhi Properfi comptrnv limited (Parent companv)

b) Fellow subsidiary/Joint Venture/Associates companies (with whom there uas transaction during the year):
l)l-fi Rccrcational Foundation l,imrted

c) The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business:

(i) I-<dhi Propern Companv Limited

(n) DLF Recrearional Foundation Limited

v

ln

Interest on Debentures

0.63 063

Interest Income on Debentures
DLF Rccrcational Foundatr()n I.imited 0.01 0.01

Share capital
l,odhi l)ropcrrr' (.omp:rnv Lrrrutcd 1.00 l.0o

Convertible Debentures
Lrmrted(

6,320 6,32t)

in Debentures (14,00,000 0.lto/, compulsorilv convertible debentures of
{ 10 each)

I)l.F Rccrcationirl [ioundation l.imrtcd l-+0.()( ) l+).()()
Lcss: Provision Frrr dimunition in valuc oI inr.estmcnts (140.00) (140.00)

accrued on Debentures

Limitcd,, rdhi (.
0.51 ( ).57

Investment in Equin shares (10000 (previous vear 10000) equin shares ofRs 10

[)1,[; Recrcatronitl fioundatron ],rmrtcd
I ().U9 l0 u9

,ess: I)rovisit-rn frlr dimunition rn r-alue oI inr.cstments (10.8e) (10.8e)

undertaken dudng the year
yeef endd
3t\?,,25

Forthe yearended
March il"zLW

l,rmrtcd

at &e end of theyc4r As at
March 31,2025

As at
March }l,N?A



DLF Cochin Hotels private Limited

Regd' ornce Address: premises *o ,.r1,j,.,0 
":"-,iJ;:Ji#trfi!ff^,ll" DLF ciry phase-r, Gurugram, Haryana_122{)02Notes to the Financial Statements for the y."r.rd.d March 3rr2025

25 Capital commitment and contingent liability not provided for.

commrtment

lia

* The company has outstanding demand of INR '0' 18 Lacs determined t/ s r43(1)of the Act, for rhe Ay 200g-0g for rvhich Company had firedrec tifi cation application.

26 F, and

\,,

27 During the eadier y.tult' tf BoD have appro'ed the withdrar.val of scheme of amargamation inrol'ing DLF Cochin Hoters private Limited (the
#U:.ffi::X?:::]#tilH:fiffi[,,:H::y,Xtl*r,X r.,"-,r.*" c";il;;,.. t,ki,,g i,to 

"o,,Ja"'.Jon, thc indepe,dent busi,ess

" ll,ff^"#:l:,il",.iT:i"i*',',::";il:'ffi^T::.;i,'..1X|;|;:"J*ffiil3;:iffi#.fi::J;j3;;#-courseorbusinessa,,eas,equa,

29 The company is primarily engaged in the business of Colonization and 
lal !-state 

Development, rvhich as per Indian Accounting Standard - r0g on'operati'gSegments'asSpecifiedundersectionl33ofthecompanies 
Act,20r3.ead*ithruleTofcompaoies(Accounts)Rules,2014(asamended)is

considered to be the only reportable busi'ess segment' The Company is primarily op..atirrg i,, I'dia rvhich is co.,sid"r.d us a singre geographicalsegrneut

t' 
*:ri;r?:Hff:T[:H::"J.*"'ativc 

irrstrumcnt duri,g the vear. The comparry troes ,ot rrave any roreign currency exposure torvards

31 The company follorvs notiFred IND As 12 - Income'I'a-res, as per sectio' 133 of compa.ies Act,2013 read wirh rules madc rhereu.der. ,r\ccordingry,
il"P[.:I?fi:lrlf 

defe*ed tax asset har-e ,.t b"e"ecog.,iz.a i., itr"r. fina,cial *,*",..",-,r. as it is rrot probabre that tasabrc income rvi, arisc i,
32 The company has used a thircl party operated accouoting sofhvare for maintaining its books of account and that the aucrit tra, feature of the saidsofhvare rvas enabled-and operated throughout the year lor all rele'an, t rn*r.tio* recorded in the softrvare and the compary persen,ed the audit trailinfullcompliancewiththerequiremet't Jfr..tio.riztp;or,n.ffi"ri.rAct,2013,-rof."rorrhefinanciaryearenaed 

Match31,z025_iilffi',L:?'ff:i':ftfififfi#l;iffi:}1tit,yj*;J;;l;;;1,'ill, orSe*ic" o.g 
"i,^,i;con,ro,s report (SoCl ,1pe

( o

CH ERED

*

EL

Other Commitments

t w.r.t. mcome ta\ demand*
0.2 r- 0.27

Nil
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DLF Cochin Hotels private Limited
Lr55 101 HR2007PTC037 1 53

Rcgd' office '\ddress: Premises N,. 221, 2nd Fltxrr, Shopping Nlall, .\4un Nfarg, DLtr Cirv phase-1, Gurugram, Ilarvana-122002
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3l,ZOZ1

33 Capitat Management
F'or the purpose of the Ctlmpanv's capital management, equr$ rnclutles issued cquin capital and all other equr6 resenres attributable t, the ecluitvshareholders and nct debt includes interest beanng loans and borrrln'inq; less crrrent investments and cash and cash equivalents. The p,mary
c''biectile ,f thc ('<lmpanv's capital management is tt: safeguard connnuin, m:rintain a strong credit rating and healthy .rpitrt ."t,r. i., ,'rrd", t,,
supPort its business and provide adequate rerLlm to sharcholders through continuing grorvth.

The (-ompanv ffumages its capital structurc and makes acliustments in hghr o[ changes in economic condirions and the requiremenrs o[ the financial
co\-enants l'he funrlng requirement is met through a misrure of equin, intemal acirurls, long term borrou'ingii and shgrt term borr,n,ings. T'he
Companv monitors capital using a geaflng ratio, u,hich is net debt chrided bv total capital plus net debt.

In 
'rder 

to achie'c tlls overall rlbiect^'e, the (-ompanv's capital management, amongst other thin6p, ,arms to ensure that it meets financial co\.enants
attached to the inreresr-bearing loans and borrorvings that define capital strllcrure ..qui.em.rrt..

in lakh)

o

E

{
**

Debt (i) 0.()() ().00

Cash & bank balances (ii) 6.0+ 7.7q
Net Debt l(D-(ii)l (6 04) (7.7e)
Total Equir-v- 2,032.11 2,034.95
Net Debt/Equin

(0.()()) ().()(D

Particulars As at
March 3\m25

As et
March 31,,2tA
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34 Financial instruments by category

i) Fair values hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at thir value in the c.nsolidated t-rnancial staremcnts and 

^re 
grouped int, three Ler.els of a fair 

'aluehierarchv' 'rhe three Levels are deFrned based .n the ,bsen'abihq' of significanr inputs t, ,h; ;:-.;;rr,l. ,i,,,r.,,,r,

Level 1: quoted priccs (unadjustecl) in acti'r'e markers flor financial instruments.
l*vel2: inputs other than cluoted prices includecl u'ithin L.evel I rhat are obscn-able tilr thc asset ()r liabilin-, eithcr directlv or indircctlr.kvel 3: unobsen'able inpurs frrr rhe asset or liabiltn.

ii) F'air value of insrruments measured at amortised cr_rst:

({ in lakh)

ln

iii) Risk management

The Company's actirities epos€ it to markct risk,_liquiditr lisk2nd ctedir risk. The Companv's board of diredors has oveall r€ryonsibilitl for the estabtishment
and orersight olthe {bmpanr's risk management frame.r'ork. This note erplains the sources ofnsk which rhe entin is exposed to and how ttre enriry manages therisk md the ftlared imf,act iD the financiat sraremenB.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk

Lr<.1uichn risk

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receir.ables,
financial assets measured at amortised cost

Borrot'ings and other liabihtics

.\gtn.q analr,sis

Roll.ing cash t'los'

frrrccasts

Ilank deposits, divcrsificadon oI asset base and
credit limits

.\r-ailabilin' of commitred crcdit lines and
borros'ing [acilides

The (iompanv's ris

directors pror-idcs ,

risk and inrestmen

(A) Credit risk

k mrnagemenr is carried out br. a central treasun' department (of the companr) undcr policics approved bl the briard o i dtrectors. 'l'hc board o[
rvritten pnnciples Frrr tx'erall nsk management, as r,,-ell as p.licies cor-eri ng spccitic are,as, such as tirreign exchange risk, inrerest rate risk, credir
t oicxccss liqurdin

The Companl as*sses and manage. c.e{-lit fsk of fnaicial assets based on folo\dng categories anil€d on rhe ba-sis of assumptions, i.puts and facrors specifc bthe class of {inancial assets.

r) Crcdit ri.k m.neg€mc
i) Credit tiak ratiog

llt€ (i'mpany assesses and managcs crcdit nsk of Iinmcial assets based on folloving categories arrird .n the basis of assumptions, inputs end fft)ri specr6c k)the dass of financial assets.

-\: Lorv credit risk
B: itloderarc crcctir risk
(:: tligh cr€dit risk

&C

1<

(

Financial assets

Investments

Other Frnancial assets

(.ash and equivalenrs

C)rher bank balance

Other Current t-rnancial assets

1.5f)

1.07

4.9tt

1.50

2.80

4.99

o.9t
Total financial assets /.55 10.20

Financial liabilities
Rorrc>t'ings

Trade pava.bles

( )thcr Frnancial liabilitres
0.43

0.57

0.42

0.57
Total fi nancial liabilities 1.00 0.99

EREDCH

AC

EL

o

*

Perticulars As at March 3\n25 As at 31,m,24
Amonised cost FVOCI Amorised cost FVOCI

Particuler6 As atMarch il\2fl25 As at 31,?fia
Amortieed coet I FVOCI Amortised cost FVOCI



Asset group Basis of categorisation Provision for credit loss
Lou credit risk (.:rsh and cash ecluir-alcnts. inr-cstmcnts, loans,

other t-rnancial asscts
l2 month espected credit loss

trloderate credit risk ot applicable l.ite timc expccted credit loss
I li.qh credit risk \ot applicablc Liie time erpected credit loss or [ullr, pror-ided tor

DLF Cochin Hotels private Limited
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Cash & cash ertuiulcflts and baf,k deposirs

crerlit nsk related to cash and cash equimlents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting h(hl,v rated banks aod dir.ersiging bank deposirs and accounrs indifferenr banks across rhe counrry.

other 6'ancial assers masured at amortized cost includes loans and advances, securitv deposits a.d orhers. credir rtk r€lared ro thes€ other fin.nciat asets ismaraged by monitoring the tecoverabilitv of such amounts continuously, rvhile at the iane time intemat co'trol s)stem in pt^." *",r" ,r," 
"-",** "* *uri.

defined timirs.

Assets under credit risk -

ii) Conccatnrion of fioanciel eseets
the Compant's Principal business activities are construction and de(elopment of red estat€ proieds and ait orher retared ac$.ities. The corhpafly,s outstanding
receilables are for rgal esrare pmiecr deleloper business.

b) Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
'l'he Compan'l-provides for l2 month expected credit losses lcrr tirllorving hnancial assers -

As at March 2025 In

As at March 2024 In

ln

\-,

v

o(r o

*

\: Lou-credit risk Cash and cash ecluir-alents, ()ther bank balances
investments, loans, and other hnancial assets 6.()-t 8.71

InYestmenfs

Casl'r and cash equitalenrs 1.07 1.07
()ther b:rnk balance

+.911 +.9r1
()ther Currcnt trnancial asscts

( )thcr trnancial itssct l.50 1.50

Invcstmcnts

(-ash and cash eguivalents 2.no 2.80
Other bank balancc +.99 -1.99
( )ther (--urrcnr trnancial irsscts t).91 I ).() I
( )thcr t-rnrrncral assct l.5tt I .5{)

TERED
NTANT"q

*

Credit rating Particuhrs Ae at M.rch 3\m?S As at March 31,2A24

Partic-ulars
Eetimated gtoss

carrying amourrt at
default

Expected credit
losscs

Cerrying erronnt net of impairment prcybion

Particuhrs
Estimated gross

carrving amount at
default

Expected credir
losses

Carryiug emormt net of impeirment provision
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(B) Liquidin risk
Liq'ridig risk is rhe risk thar the compan) \ill,enco.nrct diffculq in meeung rhe obtrgations associated uith irs fnancial tiabitiries rhat are setrled bv deliyeringqsh or i'other finmci'a'l as€t' The comP.nr's anp@ch n maiagng liqLri.i'- ;" t .n*.. o" fr as possibte, thar ir \eil hale suf6cie;r b.juidilv ro m€et itstabilities when rhey ,!c duc.

i\fanagemeot m<nitots mlling loreca-sts of th€ cornpan]'s liquidiry posirion and cash and ca"{h equi!.aleflts on the basis of expecterl cash floss. Th€ compar!takes into account thc liquidilr of the marker in \r hich the entin operates.

Matudtics of fi[ancid lirbitities
The tables belorv analvse thc companr\ financlal liabilities into rcle*ant matu.ity gr.,upings based 06 their contmctual .naturiries.

In

In

\,,

v

(C) M.rlct Ri.k

.) Iaaclt.t r.rc risk

i) Li.bilitics
The Company's aNed rlte borro$ings are caried at amonised cost Thev are thaefore nor subjecr ro interest rate risk as defined in Ind As 107, since fleither rhe
carrying mount nor the turure ca.;h florvs u,ill flucruate because of a change in maiket inreresr .ares.

ii) Ar.€t3
The c(mpany's 6xed dePosits are canied .t l$ed rate. Therefore nor subi(t to ifieresr mre risk as defined in Ind As 107, sinc€ neirher rhe carr].ing amounr nor
the future cash flovs uill fluctuate becar.rse ofa change in market inrerest tates.

(This space has been intentionallr-Ieft blank)

n\

U
E

*
RED

is
rc

Non-derivatives
I)orrot'ings
'frade pavable

( )ther tinancial liabilities

().+.1

0.57
oi:
0.57Total 1.00
1.00

Non-derivatives
Rorron'ings
'I'radc pavable

( )tl'rer t-rnancial [abilities
0..12

().57
0.42

0.57
Total 0.99

0.99

LH

*

March 3lrmW Less than l year 1-2.vear L3yeat More than 3 years Total

\ \r
I

/

March 31,2O?S Lces rh+n t year l-2year ?-3 yeer ffip then SJ,ears Total
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i") Categoization of Financial instruments

The value and fair value o[ hnancial instuments as of ]Iarch 31 ,2025 were as follorvs

The carn,ing r.alue and fair value of Enancial instuments as of }Iarch 31,2024 vere as follows:

in lakhs)

v

Level 1 Level2 Level 3
Assets :-

Investments

Cash & cash equivalents 1.07 1.0j 1.07 1.01
Other bank balance 4.98 4.98 4.98 +.98
Other financial assets (Current)

Other financial assets (Non-Current) 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
Total 7.55 7.55 7.55 7.55

Liabilities
Trade pavables 0.43 0.-r3 0.43 0.43
( )ther financial liabiliues 0.57 0.57

Total 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Level 1 Level2 Level 3

Assets :-

Investments

Cash & cash equivalents 2.80 2.80 2.80
()ther bank balance 1.99 4.99 1.99 4.99
()ther Frnancial assets (Current) 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91

C)ther Frnancial assets (Non-Current) 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50

Total 10.20 10.20 10.20 10.20

Liabilities :-

Trade pavables 0.+2 0.42 0.12 0.12
( )ther flnancial liabilities 0.5r 0.57 0.57 0.57
Total 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99

in lakhs)

\7

&C

{
*

ERET)

Af,iTs

EL

CI

*

Particulrrs Amortised
Cost

TotaI
Carqying

Value
Total Fair value FairYalue Fair Yalue Fair Value

0.57 0.57

Total fair value Fair Value FairValue Fair ValueParticulars
Total

Carrying
Value

Amortised
cost

2.80
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35 Other statutory iafotmatioa for the ycet ended March 31, 2025 atilMatchll,?-L24

(i) The Companv does not ha'e anv benami PtoPefi, wherc anr proceeding has been initiated or peading against the companv tor holding
anr benami propern under the Benami Ttansactions (Prohibition) -\ct, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules madJth"ereuoder.

(ii) The Companv do not have aov mnsactions vrith compaoies struck offunder Section 248 of the Companies act, 2013.

(iii) The companr do not have anr charges or satisfaction which is ret to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statuton
period.

(iv) The Companl' have not traded or invested in Crrpto Currencr or Virtual Currenq, dwing the Eoancial r-ear.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned ot invested funds to anr other person(s) or entin (ies), including forergn enrities
(Intermediades) with the understanding t}rat the Intermedian shall:

(a) direcdl or indirecth lend ot invest io othet persons or entities identified in aor. manner whatsoevet bv or on behalf of the Companv
Qltimate BeoeEciaties); or

\,.
(b) provide anv guatantee, securih' or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiades.

(vi) The Companv has oot teceived anr fund ftom anv person(s) or eotin (ies), includiog foreign entities €undidg pafi) vith the
understanding (whether recorded in wdting or orherwise) that the Companl shall:

(a) direcdr or inditecdr. lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in anv mannet whatsoever bv or oo behalf of the Funding
Partv Qhimate Bene6ciaties); or

(b) provide anr guarantee, securitr or the like oo behalf of the Ultimate BeneEciades.

(vii) The Companr- does oot have anr such transaction which is not recorded in the books ofaccount that has been surrendered or disclosed
as iocome in the tax assessmeots undet the Income-tax.\ct, 1961 (such as, search or sun'er or anr other) relevant provisions ofthe Iocome-
tax -{ct, 1961.

(r'iii) The Companr has not been declared wilful defaulter bv aoy bank or Enancial institution or Govemment or anl Government authorin
or other lender, io accordance with the guidelioes on wilful defaultets issued bv the Reserve Bank of India.

(ix) The Companv has complied with the numbet of lavers prescdbed under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies -\ct, 2013 read with
the Companies @.estriction on number of Lavers) Rules, 201 7 ftom rhe date of their implementation.

36 Previous tear figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to correspond to current lear classiEcatioo.

For and on behalf o[ the Board of Directors

DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited

b-.
o

{
Place: Gurugram

Date: 01 \Iav 2025
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